
AGENDA

GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE MEETING
Date: Wednesday, 28 October 2020
Time: 5.00pm
Venue: Virtual Meeting Via Skype*

Membership:

Councillors Mike Baldock (Vice-Chairman), Angela Harrison, Ken Ingleton, Denise Knights, 
Richard Palmer, David Simmons, Roger Truelove (Chairman), Mike Whiting and 
Corrie Woodford.

Quorum = 3 

Pages
Information for the Public
*Members of the press and public can listen to this meeting live. Details of how 
to join the meeting will be added to the website after 4pm on 27 October 2020. 

Privacy Statement

Swale Borough Council (SBC) is committed to protecting the privacy and 
security of your personal information. As data controller we ensure that 
processing is carried out in accordance with the Data Protection Act 2018 
and the General Data Protection Regulations. In calling to join the meeting 
your telephone number may be viewed solely by those Members and 
Officers in attendance at the Skype meeting and will not be shared further. 
No other identifying information will be made available through your 
joining to the meeting. In joining the meeting you are providing the 
Council with your consent to process your telephone number for the 
duration of the meeting. Your telephone number will not be retained after 
the meeting is finished.

If you have any concerns or questions about how we look after your
personal information or your rights as an individual under the
Regulations, please contact the Data Protection Officer by email at
dataprotectionofficer@swale.gov.uk or by calling 01795 417179.

1. Apologies for Absence and Confirmation of Substitutes

2. Minutes

To approve the Minutes of the Meeting held on 1 October 2020 (Minute 
Nos. 150 - 152) as a correct record.

Public Document Pack

https://services.swale.gov.uk/meetings/documents/g2405/Printed%20minutes%2001st-Oct-2020%2017.00%20General%20Purposes%20Committee.pdf?T=1


3. Declarations of Interest

Councillors should not act or take decisions in order to gain financial or 
other material benefits for  themselves or their spouse, civil partner or 
person with whom they are living with as a spouse or civil partner.  They 
must declare and resolve any interests and relationships.

The Chairman will ask Members if they have any interests to declare in 
respect of items on this agenda, under the following headings:

(a) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) under the Localism Act 
2011.  The nature as well as the existence of any such interest must be 
declared.  After declaring a DPI, the Member must leave the meeting and 
not take part in the discussion or vote.  This applies even if there is 
provision for public speaking.

(b) Disclosable Non Pecuniary (DNPI) under the Code of Conduct 
adopted by the Council in May 2012.  The nature as well as the existence 
of any such interest must be declared.  After declaring a DNPI interest, 
the Member may stay, speak and vote on the matter.

(c) Where it is possible that a fair-minded and informed observer, 
having considered the facts would conclude that there was a real 
possibility that the Member might be predetermined or biased the 
Member should declare their predetermination or bias and then leave the 
meeting while that item is considered.

Advice to Members:  If any Councillor has any doubt about the 
existence or nature of any DPI or DNPI which he/she may have in any 
item on this agenda, he/she should seek advice from the Monitoring 
Officer, the Head of Legal or from other Solicitors in Legal Services as 
early as possible, and in advance of the Meeting.

4. New Polling District for Teynham and Lynsted Ward (Great Easthall 
Tonge area)

3 - 10

Issued on Friday, 16 October 2020

The reports included in Part I of this agenda can be made available in alternative formats. 
For further information about this service, or to arrange for special facilities to be provided at 
the meeting, please contact DEMOCRATIC SERVICES on 01795 417330. To find out 
more about the work of this Committee, please visit www.swale.gov.uk

Chief Executive, Swale Borough Council,
Swale House, East Street, Sittingbourne, Kent, ME10 3HT



General Purposes Committee Meeting
Meeting Date 28 October 2020

Report Title Polling district review for Teynham & Lynsted ward (Tonge 
Parish area)

Cabinet Member Leader – Councillor Roger Truelove

SMT Lead / Head of 
Service

David Clifford – Head of Policy, Communications and 
Customer Services

Lead Officer Keith Alabaster – Electoral Services Officer

Key Decision No

Classification Open

Recommendations The General Purposes Committee is asked to consider the 
proposals and recommend to Council that: 
1. A new polling district is set up in the Teynham & 

Lynsted ward (Tonge Parish area) to allow electors to 
vote at Lakeview Village Hall on the Great Easthall 
Estate, Murston. 

1 Purpose of Report and Executive Summary

1.1 The Committee is asked to consider proposals to change arrangements for voting 
for residents who live on the Great Easthall Estate in the Tonge Parish area 
(TLT).

2 Background

2.1 The Electoral Administration Act 2006 introduced a requirement for councils to 
undertake a review of polling districts and places in 2007 and every four years 
thereafter. In practice, however, we monitor this more regularly and have, when 
necessary, made arrangements for alternative polling places/stations with the 
agreement of the Council and Returning Officer.

2.2 The last full review was carried out in 2018, prior to the all-out Borough and 
Parish elections held in May 2019.

2.3 To clarify, the Council is responsible for setting the polling district (a geographical 
area of a ward) and polling places (a geographical area within a polling district 
that the polling station must be located within). The Returning Officer is 
responsible for locating the polling station, which must be within the polling place.

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



3 Proposals

3.1 It is proposed that a new polling district is created in the Teynham and Lynsted 
ward, which covers all the streets and houses on the Great Easthall Estate in the 
Tonge Parish area (TLT) – see Appendix I

3.2 12 streets, 357 houses and approximately 560 electors will benefit from the new 
polling district – see Appendix II

3.3 The new polling district will enable residents to vote locally at Lakeview Village 
Hall situated on the Great Easthall estate which is a 5 to 10 minute walk away. 
Lakeview Village Hall is currently the polling station for the Murston Central 
(MUC) polling district in Murston ward. 

3.4 The residents in this area currently have to travel 3 miles to vote at Bapchild 
Village Hall and drive past Lakeview Village Hall, as access to the Great Easthall 
Estate is only via Murston.

3.5 The new polling district will need to be agreed prior to the publication of the 
revised 2021 register of electors on 1 December 2020, to enable residents to vote 
at Lakeview Village Hall for the Kent County Council elections and Kent Police 
and Crime Commissioner election on 6 May 2021. 

3.6 It is proposed that the new polling district be called “Tonge (Great Easthall)” with 
TTG as the polling district code.

4 Alternative Options

4.1 The ward and parish boundaries could be altered so the affected area could 
become part of Murston, however a Community Governance review would be 
required to change the parish boundary, which takes 12 months and the Local 
Government Boundary Commission would need to change the ward boundary 
and both would need to be done simultaneously.

4.2 Residents in the affected area could be encouraged to apply for absent votes 
(postal and proxy votes) if travelling to Bapchild Village Hall was too onerous.

5 Consultation Undertaken or Proposed

5.1 Ward members for Murston and Teynham & Lynsted ward plus Tonge Parish 
Council have been consulted previously and agree that the Great Easthall estate 
sits within Murston and it is a boundary anomaly, created by the new 
development, that has led to this difficulty which disadvantages residents.

Page 4



5.2 A number of complaints were received from residents during the 2019 elections 
about not being able to vote at the local polling station at Lakeview Village Hall 
and having to travel all the way to Bapchild. Residents were advised that the 
Council was aware of the anomaly and would be taking action in the future to 
rectify the issue. 

5.3 A Community Governance Review for the parish boundary and a request to 
review the ward boundary by the Local Government Boundary Commission 
should be initiated but thus far has not been possible due to resource issues, 
caused by three all out elections in 2019 and the COVID-19 crisis in 2020. It is 
proposed to conduct these reviews in 2021/2022. The new polling district will 
temporarily resolve this issue for the 2021 elections until the reviews can be 
completed.

6 Implications

Issue Implications
Corporate Plan Ensuring voters are able to vote at the most convenient and 

commodious venue within the polling place contributes to the 
objective to strengthen democracy within the emerging corporate 
plan

Financial, 
Resource and 
Property

None identified at this time.

Legal, Statutory 
and Procurement

The Council is required to take a full review in accordance with the 
Electoral Administration Act 2006, but in practice keeps polling 
stations under regular review.

Crime and 
Disorder

None identified at this time.

Environment and 
Climate/Ecological 
Emergency

Drastically reducing travel distance to a polling station and 
removing the need to use a car to vote will reduce carbon pollution.

Health and 
Wellbeing

None identified at this stage

Risk Management 
and Health and 
Safety

The purpose of the review is to ensure that all voters have 
reasonable facilities for voting.  It is important that venues meet 
health and safety requirements so as not to put voters at risk. 
Polling Station staff are encouraged to give feedback on venues 
and each station is visited by a Polling Station Inspector on 
election day. Lakeview Village Hall is a new station with excellent 
facilities and being local is a safer alternative to Bapchild Village 
Hall and is large enough to easily accommodate extra voters. 

Page 5



Lakeview would become a double station with a separate polling 
station team for the KCC elections as Murston ward and Teynham 
& Lynsted ward are in different KCC divisions, so it is very 
important to keep the different ballot papers with separate teams to 
avoid any risk of the wrong ballot papers being issued to the wrong 
voters. 

Equality and 
Diversity

One purpose of the review is to ensure that all electors in the 
Borough have reasonable facilities for voting, and that as far as is 
reasonable and practicable, facilities for voting are accessible for 
disabled people. Lakeview Village Hall has excellent accessibility.

Privacy and Data 
Protection

None identified at this time.

7 Appendices

7.1 The following documents are to be published with this report and form part of the 
report:
 Appendix I – Map of proposed area for new polling district - Great Easthall 

area of Tonge Parish (TLT), listing streets and house affected. 
 Appendix II – List of streets, number of properties and number of electors that 

would form the new polling district

8 Background Papers

None

Page 6



Tonge (TLT) PD – Great Easthall 
area in Teynham & Lynsted ward

Murston Central (MUC) PD in 
Murston ward

P
age 7



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX II

Teynham & Lynsted ward:
Tonge (TLT) Polling District

Streets / Properties / Electors in Great Easthall area

Streets Properties Electors
Barkers End 26 43
Clifford Crescent 24 35
Deane Close 28 44
Debnam Grove 42 62
Eveas Drive 52 80
Great Easthall Way 8 15
Haffenden Avenue 62 98
Harper Way 18 20
Housson Avenue 29 45
Makin Drive 21 38
Short Rise 16 29
Stede Avenue 31 52

Totals in PD TLT(Tonge): 357 561

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 New Polling District for Teynham and Lynsted Ward (Great Easthall Tonge area)
	Appendix I Tonge TLT - Map of Great Easthall area
	Appendix II - Streets Properties Electors in TLT Great Easthall area


